
 

 

AGENDA OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
REGULAR RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, July 12, 2023 at 8:30 a.m. 
TCERA Board Room, 136 N. Akers Street, Visalia, CA 93291 

 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 
 
Documents related to the items on this agenda are available for public inspection at the Retirement Office, 136 
N Akers Street, Visalia, CA, during normal business hours.  Such documents are also available on TCERA’s 
website, www.tcera.org, subject to staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting. 
 
Persons wishing to listen to the meeting in progress may access a live stream link located on TCERA’s website 
www.tcera.org.  
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes.  A total of 15 minutes will 
be allotted for the Public Comment period unless otherwise extended by the Board Chair. If you are part of a 
large group that would like to comment on an agenda item, please consider commenting in writing or sending 
one spokesperson to speak on behalf of the group.  Public comments are limited to any item of interest to the 
public that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board of Retirement. (Gov’t Code Section 
54954.3(a).)   
 
In Person:  Persons who wish to address the Board of Retirement during public comment or regarding an item 
that is on the agenda may address the Board of Retirement in person at the meeting.   
 
Email: Members of the public may also submit public comment via email to 
BORPublicComment@tularecounty.ca.gov any time before the start of the meeting. The comments received 
via email before the meeting will be read to the Board of Retirement in open session during the meeting 
provided that the comments meet the requirements for Public Comments as posted in the agenda.  
 
 
As a courtesy to those in attendance, all individuals are requested to place cell 
phones and other electronic devices in the non-audible alert mode. 
 

 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

TELEPHONE  (559) 713-2900 
FAX (559) 730-2631 

www.tcera.org 

136 N AKERS STREET 
VISALIA, CALIFORNIA  93291 

Leanne Malison 
Retirement Administrator 

http://www.tcera.org/


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state law, 
matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items 
appearing on the agenda, the public is invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Board 
consideration.  Any person addressing the Board will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes. Please state 
your name for the record. 
 

 
V. X-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
VI. DISABILITIES 

 
1. Closed session to be held regarding disability matters listed on this agenda. 
2. In the matter of the disability application of Monica Caro, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 
3. In the matter of the disability application of Sandra Burnitzki, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 
4. In the matter of the disability application of Thomas Marino, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 
5. In the matter of the disability application of Teresa Godwin, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 
6. Accept as filed the Disability Status Report Overview. 
 

VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Approve Minutes of the following meetings: 
a. Retirement Board Minutes of June 28, 2023. 

2. Approve payments to: 
a. Verus – invoice for investment management services in the amount of $75,000.00 for the 

quarter ended June 30, 2023. 
b. Verus – invoice for investment consulting services in the amount of $22,500.00 for the month 

ended June 30, 2023. 
c. County Counsel – invoice for legal services to the Board of Retirement in the amount of 

$2,291.80 for the period ending June 30, 2023. 
3. Pension Board Reports and Actions 

a. Ratify Retirement Administrator actions regarding Retirement Application approvals and 
Option Selections for the month of June 2023. 

b. Approve Reports regarding Retirement Applications, Option Selections and Deceased 
Pensioners and 30-Year Members for the month of June 2023. 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1. Education presentation from Aaron Zaheen regarding disability procedures and applicable case law. 
2. Discussion and possible action regarding January 1, 2023, through June 30, 2023, Board of 

Retirement Continuing Education Report. 



3. Discussion and possible action regarding Courtyards Property Owners’ Association Notice of 
Upcoming Election. 

4. Discussion and possible action regarding Resolution Ordering Board of Retirement Trustee Special 
Election – Third Member Position (General Member Representative). 

5. Discussion and possible action regarding adoption of Amendment to Resolution Regarding Pay 
Codes Included as Pensionable Income. 
 

IX. EDUCATION ITEMS 
 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding available educational events. 
 

X. UPCOMING MEETINGS 
 

1. Board of Retirement Meeting July 26, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
2. Board of Retirement Meeting, August 9, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
3. Board of Retirement Meeting, August 23, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 
4. Administrative Committee Meeting August 23, 2023, 10:00 a.m. 
5. Trustee Education/Presentation Calendar – Discussion and possible action. 

 
XI. TRUSTEE/STAFF COMMMENTS 

 
Under state law, matters presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time. 

 
XII.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Secretary of the Board of Retirement at (559) 713-
2900. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will help enable staff to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure meaningful access.  Documents related to the items on this Agenda 
submitted after distribution of the Agenda packet are available for public inspection at TCERA, 
136 N. Akers Street, Visalia, CA.  during normal business hours. 

 



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

02 - Pending Receipt of Medical Records

3/10/22   McPhetridge, Amber (Rebecca 
Cardenas)  HHS-HLTH-Tulare Public CCS/General Member   

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

3/11/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
3/11/22  Disability File Folder Created
3/11/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
3/11/22  Infolinx Setup
1/30/23  County Department Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Dept Records Received 07/19/22
1/30/23  HR & D Records Received
  Additional Remarks : HR&D Records received 07/14/22
1/30/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Certification of No Records Received 6/16/22
1/30/23  Employment Records Requested

7/5/23   Vigario, Joshua (Darcy Nunes)  
Sher-Dt-Bob Wiley Det. Fac./Safety Member   
Psychiatric/Psychological/Service Connected 
Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

7/5/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
7/5/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed

03 - Pending Medical Records Review

4/3/23   Sierra, George (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Pre-Trial/Safety Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

4/3/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing

Page # 1



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

4/3/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
4/4/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
4/4/23  Disability File Folder Created
4/4/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
4/4/23  Employment Records Requested
4/4/23  Infolinx Setup
4/4/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Certification of No Records. 
4/19/23  County Department Records Received
4/28/23  HR & D Records Received
6/2/23  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
6/2/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

1/24/23   Tello, Eron (Rebecca Cardenas)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/Safety Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

1/31/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
1/31/23  Disability File Folder Created
1/31/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
1/31/23  Employment Records Requested
1/31/23  Infolinx Setup
2/23/23  HR & D Records Received
2/23/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
3/14/23  County Department Records Received
6/2/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
6/2/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
6/2/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

10/21/22   Corazzini, Tracie (Rebecca 
Cardenas)  Tulare County Fire Dept/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  

Page # 2



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

10/21/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
10/21/22  Disability File Folder Created
10/21/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
10/21/22  Employment Records Requested
10/21/22  Infolinx Setup
11/16/22  HR & D Records Received
11/17/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
11/30/22  County Department Records Received
6/2/23  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
6/2/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
6/2/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
6/2/23  Risk Management Records Received

5/23/23   Patterson, Donald (Rebecca 
Cardenas)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/Safety Member   

Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

5/25/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
5/25/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
5/26/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
5/26/23  Disability File Folder Created
5/26/23  Infolinx Setup
5/26/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
5/26/23  Employment Records Requested
6/15/23  County Department Records Received
6/15/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/15/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
6/22/23  HR & D Records Received
6/30/23  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

9/2/22   Hileman, Brian (Rebecca Cardenas)  RMA-TR-Porterville Rd Yd 1/General Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

Page # 3



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

9/2/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
9/2/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
9/7/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/7/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/7/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/7/22  Employment Records Requested
9/7/22  Infolinx Setup
9/9/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
10/26/22  County Department Records Received
10/26/22  HR & D Records Received
11/16/22  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

1/17/23   Vilhauer, Casey (Darcy Nunes)  Sher-CS-Visalia Superior/Safety Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

1/27/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
1/27/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
2/2/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
2/2/23  Disability File Folder Created
2/2/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
2/2/23  Employment Records Requested
2/2/23  Infolinx Setup
3/3/23  HR & D Records Received
3/9/23  County Department Records Received
3/9/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received

10/6/22   Smith, Ronald (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Main Jail/Safety Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

10/6/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed

Page # 4



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

10/6/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
10/21/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
10/21/22  Disability File Folder Created
10/21/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
10/21/22  Employment Records Requested
10/21/22  Infolinx Setup
11/30/22  HR & D Records Received
1/17/23  County Department Records Received
1/17/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
6/2/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested
7/5/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
7/5/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME appt scheduled 8/18/23 @ 10am w/ Dr Donald Pompan in Clovis

9/7/22   Vera, Raychel (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-CS-Visalia Superior/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

12/5/22  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
12/5/22  County Department Records Received
12/5/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
12/5/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
12/5/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
12/5/22  Disability File Folder Created
12/5/22  Employment Records Requested
12/5/22  HR & D Records Received
12/5/22  Infolinx Setup
12/5/22  Risk Management Records Received
12/5/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested
7/5/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
7/5/23  IME Appointment Scheduled

Page # 5



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

  Additional Remarks : Appointment scheduled 8/18/2023 @11AM in Clovis w/ Dr. Donald Pompan

10/20/22   Nix, Brian (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Op-Porterville/Safety Member   Cardiac/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: Y  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

10/20/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
10/20/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
10/25/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
10/25/22  Disability File Folder Created
10/25/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
10/25/22  Employment Records Requested
10/25/22  Infolinx Setup
11/17/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
11/29/22  HR & D Records Received
1/17/23  County Department Records Received
6/2/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
6/2/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

12/21/22   Cantu, Ricardo (Rebecca Cardenas)  DA-Visalia Courthouse/Safety Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

12/21/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
12/21/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
12/23/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
12/23/22  Disability File Folder Created
12/23/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
12/23/22  Employment Records Requested
12/23/22  Infolinx Setup
12/23/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
12/23/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
1/23/23  County Department Records Received

Page # 6



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

1/23/23  HR & D Records Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

04 - IME Scheduled/Pending Report

3/28/23   Uhl, David (Darcy Nunes)  Sher-Dt-Pre-Trial/Safety Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

3/29/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
3/29/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
3/29/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
3/29/23  Disability File Folder Created
3/29/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
3/29/23  Employment Records Requested
3/29/23  Infolinx Setup
3/31/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
4/6/23  County Department Records Received
4/27/23  HR & D Records Received
6/20/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/20/23  IME Requested
6/20/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
6/20/23  Record Summarization Received
6/20/23  Record Summarization Requested
6/20/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/30/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : Appt 8/18/23 @ 9AM in Clovis w/ Dr. Donald Pompan

8/23/22   Negrete, Stephanie (Darcy Nunes)  Sher-Dt-Pre-Trial/Safety Member   Service 
Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

8/24/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
8/24/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
8/24/22  Employment Records Requested

Page # 7



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

9/1/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/1/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/1/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/1/22  Infolinx Setup
9/20/22  HR & D Records Received
10/26/22  County Department Records Received
1/31/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
4/5/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
4/5/23  Risk Management Records Received
5/22/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
5/22/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME scheduled on 6/22/23 at 12PM with Dr. Donald Pompan in Clovis.
5/22/23  IME Requested

1/27/23   Chabiel, Dennis (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Pre-Trial/General Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

 
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

1/27/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
1/27/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
2/1/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
2/1/23  Disability File Folder Created
2/1/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
2/1/23  Employment Records Requested
2/1/23  Infolinx Setup
3/3/23  HR & D Records Received
3/6/23  County Department Records Received
3/6/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
5/22/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
5/22/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME
appt
w/
Dr.
Donald
Pompan
on
6/22/23
@
1PM
in
Clovis

 
5/22/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

Page # 8



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

10/5/21   Flores, Doris (Darcy Nunes)  HHS-HS-Visalia District Off/General Member   
Neurological/Non-Service Connected Disability

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

10/7/21  Disability Application Documents Scanned
10/7/21  Disability File Folder Created
10/7/21  Infolinx Setup
10/8/21  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
10/8/21  Employment Records Requested
  Additional Remarks : Dept recs due 11/8/21, Med recs due 11/16/21; 12/16/21 - second request 
for dept recs sent to Risk and TCHC, due 1/5/22; 1/19/21 - All County and Med recs rcvd. 
Summarization ordered today, due 2/8/22
1/4/22  County Department Records Received
  Additional Remarks : HHSA Dept
1/4/22  HR & D Records Received
1/4/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
1/19/22  Risk Management Records Received
3/9/22  Record Summarization Received
3/9/22  Record Summarization Requested
6/7/22  IME Reports Received
6/7/22  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 07/26/23
12/21/22  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
12/21/22  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 05-17-2022
Dr.
Schreiber

03/17/2023 Dr. Seymour Levine - Rescheduled for 5/26/23 @ 12PM
12/21/22  IME Requested

8/12/22   Florez, Diana (Rebecca Cardenas)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

8/12/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
8/30/22  Employment Records Requested
9/1/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/1/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/1/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/1/22  Infolinx Setup

Page # 9



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

9/7/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
9/7/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
9/27/22  HR & D Records Received
9/27/22  Risk Management Records Received
12/13/22  Record Summarization Requested
12/30/22  County Department Records Received
6/23/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : Appt on 7/27/23 in Clovis w/ Dr Donald Pompan @10AM
6/23/23  IME Requested
6/23/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received

1/31/23   Rymer, Nicole (Rebecca Cardenas)  
HHS-MH-Crisis Response Team/General 
Member   Disease/Non-Service Connected 
Disability

 
Deferred Vested  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

2/2/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
2/2/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
2/2/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
2/2/23  Disability File Folder Created
2/2/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
2/2/23  Employment Records Requested
2/2/23  Infolinx Setup
2/16/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
3/3/23  HR & D Records Received
3/3/23  County Department Records Received
3/3/23  Risk Management Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Certification of No Records  received 02/03/23
5/22/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
5/22/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME schedule 6/13/23 @ 12:45 w/ Dr Scott Anderson in Clovis. 
5/22/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

Page # 10



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

11/17/22   Xiong, Ying (Darcy Nunes)  HHS-HS-Visalia District Off/General Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

11/17/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
11/17/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
11/18/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
11/18/22  Disability File Folder Created
11/18/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
11/18/22  Employment Records Requested
11/18/22  Infolinx Setup
11/28/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
12/20/22  HR & D Records Received
1/30/23  County Department Records Received
2/10/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/21/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/21/23  IME Requested
6/21/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
6/21/23  Record Summarization Received
6/21/23  Record Summarization Requested
6/28/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/28/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : Appt on 8/17/23 @ 1PM in Clovis w/ Dr. Donald Pompan

7/13/22   Heiden, Lance (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Main Jail/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

7/5/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
  Additional Remarks : Member taking TPS back to doctor for clarification on number 11C
7/14/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
7/14/22  Disability File Folder Created
7/14/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
7/14/22  Infolinx Setup
9/27/22  HR & D Records Received
9/27/22  Risk Management Records Received

Page # 11



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

9/27/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
12/19/22  County Department Records Received
1/30/23  Employment Records Requested
5/11/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
5/11/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME Scheduled for Thursday June 22, 2023 @ 3:30PM in Clovis with Dr. 
Anthony Bellomo.
5/11/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

9/21/22   Garcia, Francis (Rebecca Cardenas)  Prob-Admin-Visalia/Safety Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

9/21/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
9/21/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
9/29/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/29/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/29/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/29/22  Infolinx Setup
9/29/22  Employment Records Requested
10/17/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Certification of No Records
11/28/22  HR & D Records Received
11/28/22  County Department Records Received
3/13/23  Record Summarization Requested
3/13/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/6/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/6/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME schedule for 7/26/23 @ 10AM in Clovis w/ Dr. Donald Pompan.
6/6/23  IME Requested

5/6/21   Mahler, Tina (Darcy Nunes)  County Counsel/General Member   
 

Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

5/6/21  Supplemental IME Requested

Page # 12



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

5/18/21  Disability Application Documents Scanned
5/18/21  Disability File Folder Created
5/18/21  Infolinx Setup
5/25/21  Employment Records Requested
  Additional Remarks : All County records received. 1/19/22 - Mailed 1st reminder re pending med 
recs, due 3/2/22
7/6/21  HR & D Records Received
7/6/21  Risk Management Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Dept records received, pending workers comp records; 7/9/21 Workers 
Comp recs received
1/19/22  County Department Records Received
  Additional Remarks : County Counsel
1/19/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
7/13/22  Employment Records Reviewed
7/13/22  IME Requested
7/13/22  Record Summarization Received
7/13/22  Record Summarization Requested
8/8/22  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
  Additional Remarks : IME Appt 5/31/23 letter mailed out to applicant 4/17/23.
8/8/22  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME schedule 5/31/23 @ 8AM in Clovis with Dr. Aimee Vickers. 
12/30/22  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : On 01/11/2023 BOR agenda.
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 07/26/2023

1/24/23   Campos, Joseph (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Pre-Trial/Safety Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

1/27/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
1/27/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
2/1/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
2/1/23  Disability File Folder Created
2/1/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
2/1/23  Employment Records Requested
2/1/23  Infolinx Setup
2/16/23  County Department Records Received

Page # 13



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

3/2/23  HR & D Records Received
3/2/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
6/30/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/30/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

1/13/23   Lopez, Maria (Rebecca Cardenas)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/General Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

 
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

1/13/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
1/13/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
1/19/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
1/19/23  Disability File Folder Created
1/19/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
1/19/23  Employment Records Requested
1/19/23  Infolinx Setup
1/23/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
2/16/23  HR & D Records Received
2/17/23  Risk Management Records Received
2/21/23  County Department Records Received
6/30/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
6/30/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME Appt Schedule 6/16/23 @ 3PM in Clovis W/ Dr Don Williams
6/30/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested

06 - Additional Information Pending

8/25/22   Woods, Shamika (Rebecca Cardenas)  Prob-Admin-Visalia/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

8/25/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed

Page # 14



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

8/30/22  Employment Records Requested
8/31/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
8/31/22  Disability File Folder Created
8/31/22  Infolinx Setup
8/31/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/7/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
9/20/22  HR & D Records Received
10/26/22  County Department Records Received
10/26/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
10/26/22  Risk Management Records Received
4/6/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/6/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
4/6/23  IME Requested
6/1/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/1/23  IME Reports Received
6/1/23  Record Summarization Received
6/1/23  Record Summarization Requested
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled

11/14/22   Arroyo, Veronica (Darcy Nunes)  HHS-HS-Dinuba District Off/General Member   
 

Deferred Vested  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

11/14/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
11/18/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
11/18/22  Disability File Folder Created
11/18/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
11/18/22  Employment Records Requested
11/18/22  Infolinx Setup
11/28/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
12/20/22  HR & D Records Received
12/30/22  County Department Records Received
4/27/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/27/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
4/27/23  IME Requested

Page # 15



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

6/9/22   Wheeler, Joshua (Rebecca Cardenas)  Sher-Dt-Main Jail/Safety Member   Service 
Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

6/9/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
6/9/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
6/9/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
6/9/22  Employment Records Requested
6/30/22  Disability File Folder Created
6/30/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
6/30/22  Infolinx Setup
10/25/22  County Department Records Received
10/25/22  HR & D Records Received
10/25/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
10/25/22  Record Summarization Requested
10/25/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
4/27/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/27/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : Appt on 5/15/23 in Visalia @ 2PM w/ Dr. Michael Klassen
4/27/23  IME Requested
6/1/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/1/23  IME Reports Received
6/1/23  Record Summarization Received
6/1/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/30/23  Accommodation Memo Sent
6/30/23  Accommodation Response Received
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled

08 - Board Agenda/Pending Decision

4/29/19   Hoogeveen, Sonja (Darcy Nunes)  Library-Visalia/General Member   Disease/
Service Connected Disability

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

4/30/19  Disability Application Documents Scanned
4/30/19  Disability File Folder Created

Page # 16



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

4/30/19  Infolinx Setup
5/15/19  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
5/15/19  Employment Records Requested
  Additional Remarks : due 6/14/19; reminder sent to TCHC, records due 7/25/19; 7/12/19 All dept 
records received, pending medical records from appl; 7/24/19 mailed 1st reminder to appl for 
pending med recs; 7/6/21 mailed 2nd reminder for medical records, due 8/17/21; 10/29/21 
Summarization ordered, due 11/19/21
5/30/19  Risk Management Records Received
7/10/19  County Department Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Library Dept
7/10/19  HR & D Records Received
10/29/21  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
12/30/21  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 12/21/21 IME ordered; 12/30/21 - Appt scheduled on 2/25/22 in Clovis - 
Member
cancelled.
Rescheduled
for
05/20/2022
in
clovis

2/13/23: New IME Schedule for 04/12/23 In Clovis at 1PM.
1/4/22  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
  Additional Remarks : Sent new letter for appt on 5/20/22 on March 3, 2022.  Also emailed 
member appt. letter.
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
6/21/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : 06/28/2023
6/21/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
6/21/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
6/21/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
6/21/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
6/21/23  Record Summarization Received
6/21/23  Record Summarization Requested
6/30/23  Board Decision Letter Sent to Applicant
6/30/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
6/30/23  Disability Packet Sent to Board Members
6/30/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/30/23  IME Requested

6/9/22   Marino, Thomas (Rebecca Cardenas)  Tulare County Fire Dept/Safety Member   
Orthopedic

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

6/9/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing

Page # 17



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

6/9/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
6/9/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
6/9/22  Employment Records Requested
6/30/22  Disability File Folder Created
6/30/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
6/30/22  Infolinx Setup
7/20/22  County Department Records Received
7/20/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
10/17/22  HR & D Records Received
10/17/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
10/17/22  Record Summarization Requested
10/17/22  Risk Management Records Received
10/25/22  Employment Records Reviewed
11/10/22  Record Summarization Received
2/24/23  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
2/24/23  IME Requested
2/27/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
2/27/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
7/5/23  Accommodation Memo Sent
7/5/23  Accommodation Response Received
7/5/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : On 7/12/23 BOR agenda
7/5/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
7/5/23  IME Reports Received
7/5/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled

1/31/23   Bertoldo, Jesse (Darcy Nunes)  
TCSO-Boating Safety Enforcemen/Safety 
Member   Neurological/Service Connected 
Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

2/3/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
2/3/23  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
2/8/23  Disability Application Documents Scanned
2/8/23  Disability File Folder Created
2/8/23  Disability Findings Summary Prepared

Page # 18



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

2/8/23  Infolinx Setup
2/8/23  Employment Records Requested
2/16/23  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
3/3/23  HR & D Records Received
3/9/23  County Department Records Received
4/10/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/10/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
4/10/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
6/30/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 06/28/23

8/9/22   Arroyo, Rosemary (Darcy Nunes)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

8/17/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
9/1/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/1/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/1/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/1/22  Employment Records Requested
9/1/22  Infolinx Setup
9/7/22  County Department Records Received
9/7/22  HR & D Records Received
9/7/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
2/14/23  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
2/14/23  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
2/14/23  Medical Records Received from Applicant
2/14/23  Record Summarization Requested
3/6/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
3/6/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
3/6/23  IME Requested
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
6/21/23  Accommodation Memo Sent
6/21/23  Accommodation Response Received
6/21/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda

Page # 19



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

6/21/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/21/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
6/21/23  Record Summarization Received
6/21/23  Risk Management Records Received
6/21/23  Supplemental IME Requested

3/8/19   Caro, Monica (Darcy Nunes)  Sher-Dt-Main Jail/Safety Member   Orthopedic/
Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

9/21/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
9/21/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
9/29/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
9/29/22  Disability File Folder Created
9/29/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
9/29/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
9/29/22  Employment Records Requested
9/29/22  Infolinx Setup
10/17/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
  Additional Remarks : Certification of No Records
11/29/22  HR & D Records Received
12/12/22  Record Summarization Requested
12/30/22  County Department Records Received
2/9/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
2/9/23  IME Requested
2/9/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
6/23/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : DIS to BOR 07/12/23
6/23/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
6/23/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled

10/12/22   Godwin, Teresa (Darcy Nunes)  Prob-Juvenile Detention/Safety Member   
Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

10/24/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned

Page # 20



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

10/24/22  Disability File Folder Created
10/24/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
10/24/22  Employment Records Requested
10/24/22  Infolinx Setup
10/24/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
10/24/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
11/29/22  County Department Records Received
11/29/22  HR & D Records Received
3/29/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
3/29/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME scheduled 04/12/23 @ 1PM with Dr. Michael Klassen in Visalia, CA
3/29/23  IME Requested
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
6/30/23  Employment Records Reviewed
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 06/28/23
6/30/23  Record Summarization Received
6/30/23  Record Summarization Requested
6/30/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : 07/12/2023
6/30/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent

3/18/22   Rodriguez, Rosa (Darcy Nunes)  HHS-HLTH-Visalia Hlth Ctr/General Member   
 

Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

3/31/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
3/31/22  Disability File Folder Created
3/31/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
3/31/22  Infolinx Setup
8/26/22  County Department Records Received
8/26/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
8/26/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
8/26/22  Employment Records Requested
8/26/22  HR & D Records Received
8/26/22  Risk Management Records Received
8/26/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received

Page # 21



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

10/26/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
10/26/22  Record Summarization Requested
11/10/22  Record Summarization Received

4/25/22   Burnitzki, Sandra (Darcy Nunes)  HHS-Admin Human Resources/General Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

 
Retired  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

6/9/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
6/9/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
6/9/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
6/9/22  Employment Records Requested
6/30/22  Disability File Folder Created
6/30/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
6/30/22  Infolinx Setup
10/25/22  County Department Records Received
10/25/22  HR & D Records Received
10/25/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
10/25/22  Record Summarization Requested
10/25/22  Risk Management Records Received
10/25/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
1/19/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
1/19/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
1/19/23  IME Requested
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
6/23/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : DIS to BOR 07/12/2023
6/23/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
6/23/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent

11/12/19   Milton, Sheryl (Rebecca Cardenas)  HHS-Admin Human Resources/General Member   
Multiple/Service Connected Disability

 
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = No

11/13/19  Supplemental IME Requested

Page # 22



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

  Additional Remarks : received by mail 11/12/19
11/14/19  Disability Application Documents Scanned
11/14/19  Disability File Folder Created
11/14/19  Infolinx Setup
11/15/19  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
11/15/19  Employment Records Requested
  Additional Remarks : Due 12/16/19; 1/6/20 - All dept records received, pending medical recs from 
member; 3/12/2020 all records received, medical record summary ordered, due 4/2/2020
1/6/20  County Department Records Received
  Additional Remarks : HHSA
1/6/20  HR & D Records Received
1/6/20  Risk Management Records Received
5/15/20  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : Ortho appt scheduled 5/28/20 in Clovis, CA, IME Cancelled because of high 
cost, added to  6/24/20 Board agenda for approval; Cost approved, IME rescheduled on 7/21/20 in 
Clovis
5/15/20  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
9/9/20  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : On 2/26/20 IRC agenda; On 9/9/2020 IRC agenda
11/5/20  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : Added to 12/9/20 Board agenda; 12/7/20 Case removed from Board 
agenda and placed on 12/16/20 IRC agenda; Added to 1/13/21 Board agenda
12/29/20  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
1/15/21  Board Decision Letter Sent to Applicant
  Additional Remarks : hearing request due 1/25/21
1/27/21  Hearing Request Form Received
  Additional Remarks : Formal Hearing Request
1/27/21  County Counsel Client Request Form Sent
  Additional Remarks : Parties have been assigned, Hearing Officer Assignment notice mailed on 
2/26/21. Deadline for distribution of exhibits is 4/12/21.
4/8/21  Exhibits Prepared and Sent
  Additional Remarks : Designation of records due 5/10/21; Atty notice received from applicant; 
5/7/21 amended letter re initial exhibits sent to parties with notice of hearing (9/17/21); Received 
list of  designated, physical records due on 7/7/21
7/21/21  Augmented Exhibits Prepared and Sent, if applicable
  Additional Remarks : 7/21/21 - 1st set of augmented exhibits sent (still pending more designated 
records), also sent new Notice of Hearing (hearing rescheduled on 10/19/21); 9/14/21 Notice re: 
witnesses sent, also sent final augmented exhibits (phase for augmented recs complete); Hearing 
rescheduled on 6/14/22 and 6/15/22
3/6/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
  Additional Remarks : 3/8/23

Page # 23



DISABILITY STATUS REPORT
Status as of July 5, 2023

(37 Active Disability Applications)

12/16/22   Clark, John (Darcy Nunes)  DA-Visalia Courthouse/Safety Member   
Orthopedic/Service Connected Disability

Presumptive Indicator: N  
Active  Eligible for Service Retirement = Yes

12/19/22  DMS Notified of Disability Application Filing
12/19/22  Disability Application Packet Received and Reviewed
12/21/22  Disability Application Documents Scanned
12/21/22  Disability File Folder Created
12/21/22  Infolinx Setup
12/21/22  Benefit Estimate Sent to DMS
12/22/22  Employment Records Requested
12/22/22  Medical Records Received from Applicant
12/23/22  Disability Findings Summary Prepared
12/23/22  Tulare County Health Centers Records Received
1/23/23  County Department Records Received
1/23/23  HR & D Records Received
4/27/23  IME Appointment Letter to Member Sent
4/27/23  IME Appointment Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : IME Schedule 04/12/23 @ 1:45 PM with Dr. Michael Klassen in Visalia, CA. 
4/27/23  IME Reports Received
4/27/23  IME Requested
6/30/23  Added to Board Meeting Agenda
6/30/23  Board Meeting Notification Letter Sent
6/30/23  IRC Meeting Scheduled
  Additional Remarks : 06/28/2023


Page # 24



 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

REGULAR RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, June 28, 2023, at 8:30 a.m. 

TCERA Board Room, 136 N. Akers Street, Visalia, CA 93291 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 8:30 a.m. by Pete Vander Poel, Chair 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Voting Trustees Present: Cass Cook, Pete Vander Poel, Jim Young, Ty Inman, Roland Hill, Gary Reed, Nathan 

Polk, Laura Hernandez (Arrived at 8:49 a.m.) 

Voting Alternates Present: David Vasquez (Voting for Hernandez until 8:49 a.m.) 

Alternate Trustees Absent: George Finney, Jorge Garcia 

Staff Members Present: Leanne Malison, Retirement Administrator, Melanie Tyler, Secretary II 

Board Counsel Present:  Aaron Zaheen, Deputy County Counsel  

Consultants Present:  Mike Kamell, Verus, Jeff MacLean, Verus (remote participation) 

      

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

At this time, members of the public may comment on any item not appearing on the agenda.  Under state law, matters 

presented under this item cannot be discussed or acted upon by the Board at this time.  For items appearing on the agenda, 

the public is invited to make comments at the time the item comes up for Board consideration.  Any person addressing the 

Board will be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes. Please state your name for the record. 

 

  None 

 

V. X-AGENDA ITEMS 

 

None 

 

I. DISABILITIES 

 

1. Closed session to be held regarding disability matters listed on this agenda. 

Time for closed session was 8:32 a.m. – 8:44 a.m. 

 

2. In the matter of the disability application of Rosa Rodriguez, consider and take action regarding the application 

for a disability retirement. 

 

Motion to grant a non-service connected disability retirement.  Based on the medical evidence submitted, the 

applicant has met the burden of proof on the question of permanent disability. 

COUNTY OF TULARE 
 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

TELEPHONE  (559) 713-2900 

FAX (559) 730-2631 

www.tcera.org 

136 N AKERS STREET 

VISALIA, CALIFORNIA  93291 

Leanne Malison 
Retirement Administrator 



 

 

Motion:  Hill 

Second:  Vasquez 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

3. In the matter of the disability application of Sonja Hoogeveen, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 

 

Motion to deny a disability retirement by determining that, based on the medical evidence submitted, the 

applicant has not met the burden of proof on the question of permanent disability and has not met the burden of 

proof on the question of job causation.  In addition, the application is considered untimely, and the applicant has 

not met the additional burden of proof of continuous disability. 

 

Motion:  Young 

Second:  Cook 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

4. In the matter of the disability application of Rosemary Arroyo, consider and take action regarding the 

application for a disability retirement. 

 

Motion to grant a service-connected disability retirement.  Based on the medical evidence submitted, the applicant 

has met the burden of proof on the question of permanent disability and the question of job causation. 

 

Motion:  Polk 

Second:  Vasquez 

Motion passed unanimously. 

 

5. Accept as filed the Disability Status Report Overview. 

 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

1. Approve Minutes of the following meetings: 

a. Retirement Board Minutes of June 14, 2023. 

2. Approve payments to: 

a. BlackRock – invoice for investment management services in the amount of $114,338.49 for the quarter 

ended March 31, 2023. 

b. BNY Mellon – invoice for master trust custodial services in the amount of $72,444.98 for the quarter 

ended March 31, 2023. 

 

Motion to approve Consent Calendar as presented. 

 

Motion: Young 

Second: Cook 

Motion passed unanimously.  

 

II. INVESTMENTS 

 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding change in the Verus consulting team. 

 

Mr. Kamell introduced Mr. MacLean as his replacement on the primary service team for general consulting. Mr. 

MacLean indicated that he expects the transition to be seamless and that TCERA will experience the same level 

of customer service from Verus. 

 

2. Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. regarding TCERA’s allocation to private equity investments.  

Discussion and possible action. 



 

 

Mr. Ed Hoffman, Ms. Valerie Ruddick and Mr. Adam Belkairous of Pathway Capital Management. presented 

information regarding the firm, its process, and performance.  

 

3. Discussion and possible action regarding TCERA’s strategic investment allocation and investment managers, 

including performance, contracts, and fees. 

a. Asset Allocation Report 

b. Verus Flash Report 

 

Mr. Kamell of Verus Investments reviewed the Asset Allocation Report and the Verus Flash Report with the 

Board. 

 

The chair authorized 55 minutes for education. 

 

III. EDUCATION ITEMS 

 

1. Discussion and possible action regarding available educational events. 

 

No Action 

 

IV. UPCOMING MEETINGS 

 

 
 

Ms. Malison requested direction from the Board regarding their input for topics to review during the strategic 

planning session on August 9, 2023. Ms. Malison will draft an agenda based on the requests from the Board. 

 

No Action 

 

V. TRUSTEE/STAFF COMMMENTS 

 

Ms. Hernandez informed the Board that she is turning in her resignation effective July 1, 2023, due to increased job duties 

that will not allow her to fully commit the time needed to best serve the members of TCERA. 

 

Mr. Vander Poel wished Mr. Kamel of Verus well with his new job opportunity on behalf of the Board. 

  

XII.   ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:55 a.m. 

 

_______________________________________________ 

Pete Vander Poel, Chair 

1. Board of Retirement Meeting July 12, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 

2. Board of Retirement Meeting July 26, 2023, 8:30 a.m. 

3. Trustee Education/Presentation Calendar – Discussion and possible action. 

a. Strategic Planning Session – August 9, 2023 





















TCERA DISABILITY 
RETIREMENT LAW 

OVERVIEW

BY: AARON ZAHEEN, DEPUTY COUNTY COUNSEL



DISCLAIMER:

This Disability Retirement Law Resource is intended to be an aid to those who are 
involved in the process of determining rights and obligations under the disability 
retirement provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937. Its purpose 
is to provide information as to what the law provides and, where the law is in 
dispute, what arguments may be made on how the law should be interpreted. 
However, the information provided in the Resource may not be sufficient in dealing 
with a particular legal problem. Neither TCERA nor any of the authors of and 
contributors to the Resource warrant or represent its suitability for such a purpose. 
The Resource should not be relied on as a substitute for independent legal 
research. 

Members of boards, the public, and board staff who have questions about the 
applicability or validity of information contained in this resource should direct their 
questions to their board's attorney. 



STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR DISABILITY 
RETIREMENT PENSION
• The County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 is contained in the Government Code, Title 3, Division 4, Part 3, 

Articles 1 through 18. The disability retirement provisions of the County Employees Retirement Law of 1937 are 
contained in Article 10, Government Code sections 31720-31752. Section 31720 provides as follows: 

• Any member permanently incapacitated for the performance of duty shall be retired for disability regardless of age if, 
and only if: 

• (a) His incapacity is a result of injury or disease arising out of and in the course of his employment and such 
employment contributes substantially to such incapacity, or 

• (b) The member has completed five years of service, and 

• (c) The member has not waived retirement in respect to the particular incapacity or aggravation thereof as provided 
by Section 31009. 

• The amendments to this section enacted during the 1979-1980 Regular Session of the Legislature shall be applicable 
to all applicants for disability retirement on or after the effective date of such amendments. 



TIME TO FILE AN APPLICATION

• Government Code section 31722 provides, 

• The application shall be made while the member is in service, within four months after his or her discontinuance of service, 
within four months after the expiration of any period during which a presumption is extended beyond his or her 
discontinuance of service, or while from the date of discontinuance of service to the time of the application, he or she is 
continuously physically or mentally incapacitated to perform his or her duties. 

• See Piscioneri v. City of Ontario, et al. (2002) 95 Cal.App.4th 1037 [116 Cal.Rptr.2d 38]. The case involved, among other 
things, the application of Government Code section 21154, a statute of limitations applicable to employees in the Public 
Employees Retirement System that is similar to Government Code section 31722. The Court of Appeal held that the city 
could not deny a hearing in reliance on the fact that the application was not filed while the applicant was in service or within 
four months of discontinuance of service and ignore the fact that the application would be timely if the applicant was, from the 
date of discontinuance of service, continuously physically or mentally incapacitated to perform his or her duties. An 
administrative hearing was required to develop the facts underlying the delay in filing the application. 

• IMPORTANT: The applicant must still be a member of the association when the application is filed. (Dodosh v. County of 
Orange (1981) 127 Cal.App.3d 936 [179 Cal.Rptr. 804] )



WHO CAN FILE?

• A “member” of TCERA

• Section 31470 defines “member” as “... any person included in the membership of the retirement association 
... or any person who has elected in writing to come within the provisions of Article 9.” Article 9 (§§31700-
31706) sets forth provisions wherein an employee who leaves county service and elects to leave 
accumulated contributions on deposit may receive a deferred retirement allowance and thereby remain a 
member of the retirement system. [A member]'s voluntary resignation and withdrawal of retirement 
contributions thus precluded [them] from being a “member” when [they] appl[y] for a disability retirement 
allowance. (Dodosh v. County of Orange, supra, 127 Cal.App.3d, 938.)

•  The Legislature has defined ‘discontinuance of service’ to refer to the period of time during which “a member 
who has ceased to work for a salary from which deductions were made.” (Weissman at p. 46.) It is this 
legislative definition we must apply. Cameron v. Sacramento County Employees’ Retirement System, supra, 
4 Cal.App.5th, 1281.



AUTHORITY FOR THE BOARDS’ DETERMINATION 
OF DISABILITY AND SERVICE-CONNECTION
• California Constitution, article XVI, section 17, provides in part as follows: 

• Notwithstanding any other provisions of law or this Constitution to the contrary, the retirement board of a public pension or 
retirement system shall have plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for . . . . administration of the system, subject to all 
of the following: 

• (a) The retirement board of a public pension or retirement system shall have the sole and exclusive fiduciary responsibility 
over the assets of the public pension or retirement system. The retirement board shall also have sole and exclusive 
responsibility to administer the system in a manner that will assure prompt delivery of benefits and related services to the 
participants and their beneficiaries. The assets of a public pension or retirement system are trust funds and shall be held for 
the exclusive purposes of providing benefits to participants in the pension or retirement system and their beneficiaries and 
defraying reasonable expenses of administering the system. 

• (b) The members of the retirement board of a public pension or retirement system shall discharge their duties with respect to 
the system solely in the interest of, and for the exclusive purposes of providing benefits to, participants and their beneficiaries, 
minimizing employer contributions thereto, and defraying reasonable expenses of administering the system. A retirement 
board's duty to its participants and their beneficiaries shall take precedence over any other duty. 



AUTHORITY FOR THE BOARDS’ DETERMINATION OF 
DISABILITY AND SERVICE-CONNECTION (CONT’D)

• Government Code section 31723 provides, 

• The board may require such proof, including a medical examination at the expense of the 
member, as it deems necessary or the board upon its own motion may order a medical 
examination to determine the existence of the disability. 

• The Court of Appeal in McIntyre v. Santa Barbara County Employees' Retirement System, 
Board of Retirement (2001) 91 Cal.App.4th 730, at 736-737 [110 Cal.Rptr.2d 565] rejected an 
applicant’s argument that the Board of Retirement was limited to either requiring an applicant to 
submit records or requiring the applicant to submit to a medical examination. 

• Government Code sections 31724 and 31725 also provide for authority for the Board to 
determine disability status



THE THREE MAIN ISSUES IN DISABILITY 
RETIREMENT HEARINGS

• 1. Is the member permanently incapacitated?

• 2. If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected?

• 3. Should the application be deemed to have been filed on the date following the day for 
which the applicant last received regular compensation?



IS THE MEMBER PERMANENTLY INCAPACITATED?

• Distinctions in the meaning of the word “Disability”:

• The ADA definition, very expansive, impairment does not have to be permanent or even 
presently incapacitating.

• Worker’s Compensation’s definition, disability defined as an individual’s inability to perform 
certain activities of daily living, such as work.

• CERL provides “Permanent incapacity” for the performance of duty is the substantial inability 
of a member to perform his or her usual duties. (Harmon v. Board of Retirement, supra, (1976) 
62 Cal.App.3d 689, 694-696 [133 Cal.Rptr. 154].) 



IS THE MEMBER PERMANENTLY INCAPACITATED? 
(CONT’D)

• What is a “usual duty?”
• The Court of Appeal in Mansperger did not define "substantial inability" or "usual duty." The closest 

the Court came to providing a definition was stating what was not a usual duty. The court held that 
a duty that is a "remote occurrence" or "not a common occurrence" is not a "usual duty." It follows 
that an inability to perform a duty that is a remote or uncommon occurrence is not a substantial 
inability to perform the usual duties of the job. (Mansperger v. Public Employees’ Retirement System, 
supra, 6 Cal.App.3d, 877.)

• Duties listed in a job classification are not the measure of a member’s usual duties if the duties 
listed are not actually performed.

• A member need not be physically or mentally incapable of performing each and every duty 
that may arise within the job classification in order to qualify for a disability retirement. 



IS THE MEMBER PERMANENTLY INCAPACITATED? 
(CONT’D)

• “Permanent”:
• Unfortunately, no appellate court decisions exist pertaining to CERL in regard to the word “permanent” so we have to look to 

outside authority for guidance.  However, ultimate it is the BOARD’S DETERMINATION of what is permanent that matters.

• A disability is considered permanent when the employee has reached maximal medical improvement, meaning his or her 
condition is well stabilized, and unlikely to change substantially in the next year with or without medical treatment. (Worker’s 
compensation)

• Since the physicians who render opinions in disability retirement cases often use the terminology of the workers' 
compensation system, it is important to consider the difference between the nature of permanent disability for workers' 
compensation purposes and the nature of permanent disability, or incapacity, for disability retirement purposes. 

• Conceivably, one can be temporarily disabled for workers' compensation purposes, but permanently incapacitated for 
purposes of disability retirement. On the other hand, an employee may have a very high permanent disability rating for 
workers' compensation purposes, yet still be capable of substantially performing the usual duties of the job. 



IS THE MEMBER PERMANENTLY INCAPACITATED? 
(CONT’D)

• If what would otherwise be a permanent disability is treatable via medical care, or 
procedures, the incapacity may not be permanent:

• Reynolds v. City of San Carlos (1981) 126 Cal.App.3d 208, 216-217 [178 Cal.Rptr. 636]: 
Incapacity was found not to be permanent where the member’s refusal of knee 
surgery was not reasonable. 

• Montgomery v. Board of Retirement (1973) 33 Cal.App.3d 447 [109 Cal.Rptr. 181] :         
An incapacity will be found to be permanent even if a refusal of surgery is otherwise 
unreasonable when the ground for refusal is a sincerely held religious belief. 



IS THE MEMBER PERMANENTLY INCAPACITATED? 
(CONT’D)

• An employee who is permanently incapacitated for the usual duties of his or her assignment 
may not be entitled to a disability retirement pension if the employer can accommodate the 
employee’s incapacity

• Risk of further injury as a basis for a disability:  A physician-imposed work restriction 
may be incapacitating to a member, if it prevents them from doing their normal duties.

• Additionally, unacceptable risk of injury with continued usual duties may also be considered 
permanent incapacity, if the unacceptability of that risk is determined by a physician.



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED?

• Government Code section 31720, provides in pertinent part as follows: 

• Any member permanently incapacitated for the performance of duty shall be retired for 
disability regardless of age if, and only if: 

• (a) The member's incapacity is a result of injury or disease arising out of and in the course 
of the member's employment, and such employment contributes substantially to such 
incapacity . . . 



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

• Distinguishing “service-connected disability pension” from the similar sounding “service pension.” 

• “Service pension” refers to the regular pension a member of the retirement association earns based on his or 
her years of service and age at the time of retirement. “Service pension” and “regular retirement” are 
synonymous with “regular pension,” “retirement,” or “pension for years of service and age.” These terms 
distinguish the basis of the pension from a disability retirement pension. 

• “Service-connected disability retirement” or “service-connected disability retirement pension” refer to a 
retirement or pension for incapacity caused by a work-related injury or illness. It is sometimes referred to by 
its acronyms “SCDR” or “SCD” just as its nonservice-connected cousin for a permanent incapacity caused by 
an injury or illness that is not work-related is sometimes referred to as a “NSCDR” or the shorter “NSCD.” 



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

• In order to be considered “service-connected,” the injury must both arise out of and 
occur in the course of employment – it must be “AOE-COE” – and the employment must 
contribute substantially to the incapacity. 

• Both the workers’ compensation law and the CERL of 1937 provide that injuries will be 
considered to be caused by the employment when they arise out of (“AOE”) and in the course 
of employment (“COE”). 

• The elements of “arise out of employment” and “occur in the course of employment” are 
separate elements and both must be satisfied in order for the job to be considered the legal 
cause of an injury. (Associated Oil Co. v. Industrial Acc. Comm. (1923) 191 Cal. 557, 562 [217 
P. 744].) Experience instructs that, as a general rule, if an injury occurs in the course of 
employment, it also arises out of employment. Of course, there are exceptions. 



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

• “AOE” refers to a requirement that the injury have its source in a RISK or HAZARD of 
employment, as opposed to a risk or hazard that is personal to the employee or to which 
members of the general community (“the commonalty”) are exposed. It includes risks that, 
while also risks of the commonalty, are greater or special for the employee by virtue of 
some aspect of his or her employment. 

• “COE” on the other hand, refers to the requirement that the incapacitating injury or illness 
occur in the TIME, PLACE, and CIRCUMSTANCES of employment. 



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

•“AOE”
• Infectious Disease – The risk of contracting the disease on the job must be greater than the risk to 

which members of the general community are exposed.

• Doctrine of Position Risk -- If the employment brings the employee to the particular place where 
injury occurs, the injury arises from a risk of employment.

• Misc Examples: Altercations with coworkers, Horseplay, Natural Calamities,  Assault by a third party, 
Injuries from normal bodily movements, Self inflicted injury



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

• “COE”
• Primary Circumstance: employee must have been performing service to the employer.  Service includes performance of 

reasonable activities, expressly or impliedly authorized, directed towards fulfillment of employment duties, for the employers 
benefit.

• Paid activities.

• Going and coming rule: the employee is not in the course of employment during the normal commute from home to work and 
back or lunch breaks (except if employer requires the employee to have an automobile for use on the job)

• However, Arrival and departure (access/egress) are within the course of employment.  The employee is in the course of 
employment when the employee reaches the entrance to their workplace, including parking lots.

• Work-at-Home obfuscates this line, but course of employment judicially does continue if it is employer approved (Bramall v. 
Workers’ Comp. Appeals Bd. (1978) 78 Cal.App.3d 151 [144 Cal.Rptr. 105].) 



IF THE MEMBER IS INCAPACITATED, IS THE 
INCAPACITY SERVICE-CONNECTED? (CONT’D)

• The employment must contribute substantially to the incapacity.

• In Heaton v. Marin County Employees Retirement Bd. (1976) 63 Cal.App.3d 421 [133 
Cal.Rptr. 809] the Court of Appeal interpreted the provisions of Government Code section 
31720 before the 1979 amendment which added the "contributes substantially" language. 

• Many presumptions that incapacities are service connected, some of them are: duty belt 
related injuries, heart trouble, cancer, blood borne infectious disease, and illness caused 
by exposure to biochemical substances are ALL service connected presumptions.



SHOULD THE APPLICATION BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN FILED ON THE DATE 
FOLLOWING THE DAY FOR WHICH THE APPLICANT LAST RECEIVED REGULAR 
COMPENSATION?

• Government Code section 31722 provides, 

• The application shall be made while the member is in service, within four months after his or her 
discontinuance of service, within four months after the expiration of any period during which a 
presumption is extended beyond his or her discontinuance of service, or while from the date of 
discontinuance of service to the time of the application, he or she is continuously physically or 
mentally incapacitated to perform his or her duties. 

• When it has been demonstrated to the satisfaction of the board that the filing of the member's 
application was delayed by administrative oversight or by inability to ascertain the permanency 
of the member's incapacity until after the date following the day for which the member last 
received regular compensation, such date will be deemed to be the date the application was 
filed. 



SHOULD THE APPLICATION BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN FILED ON THE DATE 
FOLLOWING THE DAY FOR WHICH THE APPLICANT LAST RECEIVED REGULAR 
COMPENSATION?

• The pension allowance commencement is delayed beyond the date of the application 
because the applicant continues to receive “regular compensation.” Astorga v. Retirement 
Bd. of Santa Barbara County Employees Retirement System (2016) 245 Cal.App.4th 386 

• When the member is granted or is entitled to compensated time off for illness, the pension 
commencement date may be delayed to a date after the application is actually filed. 

• The pension commencement date may be set earlier than the actual date the application 
was filed if the delay in filing is excused.



QUESTIONS?



 
BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

CONTINUING EDUCATION 
January 1, 2023 – June 30, 2023 

 
Member Name Education Hours Obtained 
Cass Cook 16.83 
Laura Hernandez 5.00 

Ty Inman 17.33 

  

Roland Hill 7.83 

Gary Reed 5.83 

Jim Young 13.33 

Nathan Polk 1.75 

Pete Vander Poel 7.83 

David Vasquez 18.83 

Jorge Garcia-Perez 4.83 

George Finney 24.16 

Leanne Malison 42.83 

Paul Sampietro 19.41 
 

  
 

 



 2 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 
HOURS OF CONTINUING EDUCATION  

January 1, 2023 – June 30, 2023 
 

Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Cass Cook    

 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 
Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 
Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 
Educational Presentation from Verus 
regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 
Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 
Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 

 
Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 .5 

 SACRS Spring Conference 5/9/23-5/12/23 9 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   5/24/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 

5/24/23 
.33 

 
Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 

.75 

 
Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 

.17 
   Total:         16.83 
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Laura Hernandez    

 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 
Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 
Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 
Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 
Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 



 3 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 .5 

 
Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 

.75 

 
Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 

.17 
     Total:     5.00 
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Ty Inman    

 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 
Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 
Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 CALAPRS General Assembly 3/4/23-3/7/23 9.5 

 
Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
Educational Presentation from Verus 
regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 

.5 

 
Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 
Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 

 
Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 

.5 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   5/24/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

 
Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 
Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 .17 

   Total:     17.33     
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Roland Hill    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 2/22/23 1.25 



 4 

Performance Report 
 
 

Educational Presentation from Verus 
regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 
 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 

TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 

.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 

Investment Performance Report.   
5/24/23 

.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 

Review 5/24/23 .33 

 Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 .17 

   Total:      7.83     
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Gary Reed    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 
Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   

5/24/23 
.5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

 
Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 6/28/23 .17 



 5 

Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

   Total:             5.83 
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Jim Young    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 

Performance Report 
2/22/23 1.25 

 CALAPRS General Assembly 3/4/23-3/7/23 7.5 
 Educational Presentation from Verus 

regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 
 

Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   5/24/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 

5/24/23 
.33 

 Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 

.75 
 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 

Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 

.17 
   Total:           13.33   
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Nathan Polk     
 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 

Investment Performance Report.   5/24/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

 Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 .17 

   Total:         1.75  
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Pete Vander Poel    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 

Performance Report 
2/22/23 1.25 

 Educational Presentation from Verus 3/22/23 .5 



 6 

regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
 
 

Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 
 Educational presentation from Verus 

regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   

5/24/23 
.5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

 
Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 
Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 .17 

   Total:      7.83    
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
David Vasquez    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 

.5 
 SACRS Spring Conference 5/8/23-5/12/23 13 
 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 

Investment Performance Report.   
5/24/23 

.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 

Review 5/24/23 .33 

 Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 6/28/23 .17 



 7 

Report 
   Total:       18.83     
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Jorge Garcia-Perez    
 Educational Presentation from Verus 

regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 
Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 
(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 
 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 

TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 

.5 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   

5/24/23 
.5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

   Total:   4.83       
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
George Finney    
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 Educational Presentation from Verus 
      

  

3/22/23 .5 
 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 

Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 CALAPRS General Assembly 3/5/23-3/7/23 8.5 
 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 

(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 .5 

    
 SACRS Spring Conference 5/9/23-5/12/23 8.75 



 8 

 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 
Investment Performance Report.   5/24/23 .5 

 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review 5/24/23 .33 

   Total:          24.16   
    
Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Leanne Malison    
 CALAPRS Administrators Round Table-

Virtual Event 2/9/23 4.00 

 Hanson Bridgett Human Resources Issues 
   

2/7/23 1.5 
 Verus First Quarter 2023 Landscape 

Webinar 1/31/23 1.00 

 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 
Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 DWS Market And Political Update-Webinar 3/15/23 1 
 CALAPRS Administrators Institute 3/4/23-3/7/23 12 
 Educational Presentation from Verus 

regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Verus Second Quarter 2023 Investment 4/25/23 1 
 Presentation from IFM Global Infrastructure 

(US) LLC regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
infrastructure investments.   

4/26/23 

.75 
 Presentation from INVESCO regarding 

TCERA’s allocation to real estate debt 
investments.   

4/26/23 .75 

 Educational presentation from Verus 
regarding Manager Ratings and Bank 
Exposure. 

4/26/23 

.5 
 SACRS Spring Conference 5/8/23-5/12/23 14.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 

Investment Performance Report.   
5/24/23 

.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 

Review 5/24/23 .33 

 Presentation from Pathway Capital Mgmt. 
regarding TCERA’s allocation to private 
equity investments 

6/28/23 .75 

 Verus Investments reviewed the Asset 
Allocation Report and the Verus Flash 
Report 

6/28/23 .17 

 
 
 
 
 

  

Total:            42.83   



 9 

Member Name Name of Event Date(s) of Event Education Hours Obtained 
Paul Sampietro    
 Black Rock: A New Approach: Asset 

allocation for the market regime 1/12/23 1.00 

 Verus Quarterly Investment Landscape 1/31/23 1.00 
 Parliamentary Procedures Education-County 

Counsel 2/8/23 .83 

 Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s 
December 31, 2022, Investment 
Performance Report 

2/22/23 1.25 

 Educational Presentation from Verus 
regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related 
financial issues 

3/22/23 .5 

 Presentation from Sustainable Growth 
Advisors regarding TCERA’s allocation to 
international equity investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 Presentation from PIMCO regarding 
TCERA’s allocation to international equity 
 investments.   

3/22/23 .75 

 SACRS Spring Conference 5/9/23-5/12/23 12.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s March 31, 2023, 

Investment Performance Report.   
5/24/23 

.5 
 Verus: TCERA’s Strategic Asset Allocation 

Review 5/24/23 .33 

   Total:          19.41 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Retbd: Continuing Education Reports/Continuing Education with Totals 01/01/23 – 06/30/23 
 







































 
EDUCATIONAL EVENTS | (F:)/Data/Public/RETBD/Educational Events Binder 

 
 

EDUCATIONAL EVENTS - Board of Retirement  
 
 

 
 

 
2023 

 
1. SACRS, Public Pension Management Program 2023, July 16-19, 2023, UC Berkeley Haas 

School of Business Executive Education. Preliminary Agenda in binder. 
 

2. CALAPRS, Principles of Pension Governance for Trustees 2023, August 28-31, 2023, Villa 
Graziadio Executive Center, Pepperdine University, Malibu, CA. Agenda in binder. 

 
3. PIMCO, Fall PIMCO Institute, October 23-26, 2023, 650 Newport Center Dr, Newport Beach. 

Agenda in Binder. 
 

4. CALAPRS, Virtual Trustees Roundtable, October 27, 2023. Agenda Pending. 
 

5. SACRS, Fall Conference. November 7-10, 2023, Omni Rancho Las Palmas Resort & Spa, 
Rancho Mirage, CA. Agenda Pending. 

 
6. Invesco, Real Estate Global Client Conference, November 14-16, 2023, The Lodge at Torrey 

Pines, San Diego, CA. Agenda Pending. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Administrator:/Inv Com/Agenda Backup Materials/Education Calendar/2020 Trustee Educ Calendar  Updated: August 23, 2023 

 

TCERA Board of Retirement 
2023 Trustee Education/Presentation Calendar 

 
 
Month Meeting Date Education/Presentation Topics 

January    
 
 
 

January 11 
 
January 25 

 
 
 

February February 8 
 
February 22 

Parliamentary Procedures Education – Counsel  
 
12/31/22 Investment Report – Verus 
 

March    March 8 
 
 
March 22 
 

 
 
 
PIMCO RAE 
SGA 
 

April    
 
 

April 12 
 
April 26 
 

 
 
Invesco 
IFM 
 

May    
 
 

SACRS – May 9-12 
 
May 24 

 
 
3/31/23 Investment Report – Verus 
Strategic Asset Allocation Review - Verus 
 

June   June 14 
 
 
June 28 
 

 
 
 
Pathway 

July  July 12 
 
July 26 

Disability Education – Counsel 
 
BlackRock (Fixed Income) 
DoubleLine 
 

August August 9 
 
August 23 

Strategic Planning Session 
 
6/30/23 Investment Report – Verus 
Investment Manager Fee Review 
Cryptocurrency and Blockchain Education 
 



Administrator:/Inv Com/Agenda Backup Materials/Education Calendar/2020 Trustee Educ Calendar  Updated: August 23, 2023 

 

September September 13 
 
September 27 
 

 
 
Boston Partners 
Leeward 
 

October     October 11 
 
 
 
October 25 

Preliminary Actuarial Analysis and Presentation of 
Three-Year Experience Study – Cheiron 
Joint Meeting with Board of Supervisors 
 
Private Markets Review - Verus 
Actuarial Discussion – Part 2 
 

November November 1 - due to 
SACRS 
 
SACRS Nov 7-10 
 
November 15 - due 
to Thanksgiving 
Holiday 

Final Actuarial Valuation Report and Three-Year 
Experience Study - Cheiron 
 
 
 
9/30/23 Investment Report 
Final Actuarial Valuation Report and Three-Year 
Experience Study – Part 2 (if needed) - Cheiron 
 
 

December December 13 Brown Armstrong – Audit Results 

 
 

 
 
Expected 2024 Investment Manager Regular Biennial Presentations: 
 
QMA (PGIM) 
Sixth Street 
RREEF 
Ocean Avenue 
William Blair 
KBI 
PGIM (EM Debt) 
American Realty 
MacKay Shields 


	TCERA Disability retirement law overview.pdf
	TCERA Disability retirement law overview
	Slide Number 2
	Statutory authority for disability retirement pension
	Time to file an application
	Who can file?
	Authority for the boards’ determination of disability and service-connection
	Authority for the boards’ determination of disability and service-connection (cont’d)
	The Three main issues in disability retirement hearings
	Is the member permanently incapacitated?
	Is the member permanently incapacitated? (CONT’D)
	Is the member permanently incapacitated? (CONT’D)
	Is the member permanently incapacitated? (CONT’D)
	Is the member permanently incapacitated? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected?
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	If the member is incapacitated, is the incapacity service-connected? (CONT’D)
	Should the application be deemed to have been filed on the date following the day for which the applicant last received regular compensation?
	Should the application be deemed to have been filed on the date following the day for which the applicant last received regular compensation?
	QUESTIONS?

	RB 071223 CONTINUING EDUCATION TOTALS 010123-063023.pdf
	Education Hours Obtained
	Member Name
	Pete Vander Poel
	18.83
	42.83
	Leanne Malison
	19.41
	Paul Sampietro
	Education Hours Obtained
	Date(s) of Event
	Name of Event
	Member Name
	Education Hours Obtained
	Date(s) of Event
	Name of Event
	Member Name
	Total:      7.83    
	Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s December 31, 2022, Investment Performance Report
	1.25
	2/22/23
	Presentation from Verus regarding TCERA’s December 31, 2022, Investment Performance Report
	1.25
	2/22/23
	13
	5/8/23-5/12/23
	SACRS Spring Conference
	.5
	3/22/23
	Educational Presentation from Verus regarding Silicon Valley Bank and related financial issues
	1.5
	2/7/23
	Hanson Bridgett Human Resources Issues Legal Update Webinar
	Paul Sampietro

	EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES.pdf
	EDUCATIONAL EVENTS - Board of Retirement

	2023 Trustee Educ Calendar.pdf
	Month


